# **COUNTY COUNCIL**

## **COUNCIL MEETING - 6 MAY 2014**

**<u>MINUTES</u>** of the meeting of the Council held at the Council Chamber, County Hall, Kingston upon Thames, Surrey KT1 2DN on 6 May 2014 commencing at 10.30 am, the Council being constituted as follows:

David Munro (Chairman) Sally Marks (Vice-Chairman)

Mary Angell W D Barker OBE Nikki Barton Ian Beardsmore John Beckett Mike Bennison Liz Bowes Natalie Bramhall Mark Brett-Warburton Ben Carasco Bill Chapman Helyn Clack Carol Coleman Stephen Cooksey Steve Cosser Clare Curran Graham Ellwood Jonathan Essex Robert Evans Tim Evans Mel Few Will Forster Pat Frost **Denis Fuller** John Furev Bob Gardner Mike Goodman David Goodwin Michael Gosling Zully Grant-Duff Ken Gulati Tim Hall Kay Hammond **David Harmer** Nick Harrison Marisa Heath Peter Hickman Margaret Hicks David Hodge Saj Hussain

David Ivison **Daniel Jenkins** George Johnson Linda Kemeny Colin Kemp Eber Kington Rachael I Lake Stella Lallement Yvonna Lay Denise Le Gal Mary Lewis **Christian Mahne Ernest Mallett MBE** Peter Martin Jan Mason Marsha Moseley **Tina Mountain Christopher Norman** John Orrick Adrian Page Chris Pitt **Dorothy Ross-Tomlin Denise Saliagopoulos Tony Samuels Pauline Searle** Stuart Selleck Nick Skellett CBE Michael Sydney Keith Taylor Barbara Thomson Chris Townsend **Richard Walsh** Hazel Watson **Fiona White Richard Wilson** Helena Windsor Keith Witham Alan Young Victoria Young

\*absent

# 24/14 CHAIRMAN [Item 1]

Under the motion of Mrs Sally Marks, seconded by Mr Chris Townsend, it was unanimously:

#### **RESOLVED**:

That Mr David Munro be elected Chairman of the Council for the council year 2014/15.

# DECLARATION OF ACCEPTANCE OF OFFICE

Mr Munro made the statutory declaration of office and took the Chair. The newly elected Chairman expressed his thanks to the Members of the Council for electing him as Chairman, for a second year.

# 25/14 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE [Item 2]

Apologies for absence were received from Mrs Lay, Mr Orrick, Mr Samuels and Mrs Young.

### 26/14 MINUTES [Item 3]

The minutes of the meeting of the County Council held on 18 March 2014 were submitted, confirmed and signed.

# 27/14 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS [Item 4]

The Chairman made the following announcements:

- (1) He presented Mrs Margaret Hicks with a long service certificate because she had been a County Councillor for 25 years.
- (2) Queen's Award for Voluntary Services: He highlighted this award to Members and asked them to consider nominating any worthy community organisations in Surrey.
- (3) He informed Members that Rachel Crossley, Lead Manager of Democratic Services would be taking a two year secondment to work on the New Models of Delivery for Surrey.
- (4) He drew Members' attention to the display boards in the Grand Hall which highlighted the achievements of the Services for Young People during the last twelve months.
- (5) The lunchtime speaker was Peter Lee, the High Sheriff.
- (6) Finally, he said that he would be re-ordering the agenda and taking the Report of the Independent Remuneration Panel (item 14) before item 10.

# 28/14 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST [Item 5]

Mr Forster declared a pecuniary interest in the Original Motion standing in the name of George Johnson (item 13iv) because he was employed by a member of the European Union. He said that he would take no part in the discussion or vote on this item.

# 29/14 VICE-CHAIRMAN [Item 6]

Upon the motion of Mr Richard Walsh, seconded by Mrs Helyn Clack, it was unanimously:

# **RESOLVED**:

That Mrs Sally Marks be appointed Vice-Chairman of the Council for the Council year 2014/15.

# DECLARATION OF ACCEPTANCE OF OFFICE

Mrs Marks was invested by Mr Munro with the Vice-Chairman's badge. She made the statutory declaration of office and expressed thanks to the Members of the Council for electing her as Vice-Chairman, for a second year.

# 30/14 LEADER'S STATEMENT [Item 7]

The Leader made a statement. A copy of his statement is attached as Appendix A.

He also tabled the Cabinet Portfolios for 2014/15, as detailed below:

# **Cabinet Members**

Leader (and Cabinet lead for Statutory Responsibilities) – David Hodge Deputy Leader (and Cabinet lead for the Economy and Prosperous Places) – Peter Martin Adult Social Care – Mel Few Business Services (and Cabinet lead for New Models of Delivery) – Denise Le Gal Children and Families – Mary Angell Community Services (and Cabinet lead for Continuous Improvement) – Helyn Clack Environment and Planning – Mike Goodman Highways, Transport and Flooding Recovery – John Furey Public Health and Health and Wellbeing Board – Michael Gosling Schools and Learning – Linda Kemeny

# **Cabinet Associate Members**

Cabinet Associate for Adult Social Care – Steve Cosser Cabinet Associate for Assets and Regeneration – Tony Samuels Cabinet Associate for Children, Schools and Families – Clare Curran Cabinet Associate for Fire and Police Services – Kay Hammond Members were invited to make comments and ask questions. They made the following points:

- That the additional investment for Highways / Roads was welcomed but clarification was requested in relation to how it would be funded.
- The increase in the number of young people starting apprenticeships.
- Staff appraisals and what steps he would be taking to increase the number of staff, and particularly those working in the front line, receiving appraisals.
- A request for feedback on the difference that the Supporting Families Programme had made and also that Central Government should be asked to extend the time taken for working with troubled families.
- The success of projects funded from the Community Improvement Fund.
- Concern about the planning for school place expansion in the Ashtead area.
- Prioritisation of Council motions.
- Parking issues in Haslemere on Bank Holidays, when community events were taking place.
- The strategy of helping elderly people to live independently versus voluntary organisations saying that suffering from loneliness was a big issue for this group of people.

# 31/14 MEMBERS' QUESTION TIME [Item 8]

Notice of four questions had been received. The questions and replies are attached as Appendix B.

A number of supplementary questions were asked and a summary of the main points is set out below:

(Q1) Mr Robert Evans did not consider that the residents of Stanwell Moor would not agree that the new arrangements for the bus service in this area was satisfactory and invited the Cabinet Member for Transport, Highways and Environment, who accepted his invite, to visit the area. The Cabinet Member did say that changes to the bus service would have been considered at the local committee.

**(Q2) Mrs Watson** referred to the County Council's press release (26 March 2014) in relation to the use of the Runnymede Centre for a new secondary school and asked the Leader of the Council if he would make this a formal Council decision so that it could be scrutinised. The Leader said that he had nothing further to add to his tabled response.

(Q4) Mrs Watson asked the Cabinet Member for Community Services what happened to the data from the complaints feedback survey. The Cabinet Member said that she would provide a response to Mrs Watson outside the meeting.

# 32/14 STATEMENTS BY MEMBERS [Item 9]

Mr Ian Beardsmore made a statement relating to Highways issues in his division.

# N.B. The agenda was re-ordered and the report of the Independent Remuneration Panel was taken next.

# 33/14 REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL [Item 14]

The Council was asked to consider the report and the recommendations of the Independent Remuneration Panel and agree a Scheme of Allowances.

The Leader of the Council moved an amendment, which was tabled at the meeting (Appendix C).

Mr Hodge made the following points:

- The basic allowance had remained unchanged since 2008 and that Special Responsibility Allowances (SRAs) for Cabinet Members had not increased since 2006.
- The Panel had used Hay Evaluation Methodology for determining SRAs, which he considered inappropriate because it failed to take into account the political responsibility of Members.
- He would be asking the Chief Executive to review the terms of reference of future Independent Remuneration Panels.
- His amendment proposed significant changes to the SRAs for Cabinet Associates, Select Committee Chairmen and the Pension Fund Board Chairman.
- He also proposed allowances for opposition group leaders, where their party had a minimum of 10% of the elected Members of the Council.
- He believed that it was the intention that the amended scheme should take effect from May 2013, the start of this administration and therefore he proposed a one-off payment to any increase that the Member would have been eligible for.
- That all allowances would be index linked and adjusted annually, in accordance with the Consumer Price Index.
- Finally, he referred to the Members of the Adoption and Fostering Panels and proposed a SRA of £1000 for them.

This amendment was formally seconded by Mr Skellett who said that the level of political responsibility for each role had been carefully considered and benchmarked against comparative data from other authorities in the South East area. Surrey's allowances had fallen significantly behind these authorities. He also said that the Leader and Deputy Leader had taken no part in the discussion concerning the allowances proposed for their roles.

Six Members spoke on this amendment, making the following points:

- The Leader / Deputy Leader had overall responsibility for the County Council's annual budget of approximately £1.7billion. Also, since they had been in their respective roles, significant savings had been made to the Budget.
- The SRAs were not out of proportion to their level of responsibility.
- The IRP report said that the basic allowance was not supposed to be a financial incentive. However, the same could not be said for the SRAs.
- Most of the SRAs were awarded to Conservative councillors.
- It was unacceptable for Members to award large increases to the Leader / Deputy Leader when some residents struggled to pay their council tax.
- It was outrageous that Members considered awarding these increases when services were being cut and many residents were not receiving pay rises.

- That the IRP's approach was logical and an element of 'catchup' was accepted.
- The proposed allowances for the Cabinet team were significant.
- Surrey staff had only received small pay increases in recent years.
- Member Allocations had been reduced this year.
- There were four new allowances proposed which had not been through the IRP.
- Councillors who only received the basic allowance of approximately £12K per annum, most of them non-Conservatives, would need other sources of income to make ends meet.

Mr Essex then moved a further amendment at the meeting (formally seconded by Mr Robert Evans), which was as follows:

- (i) That the increase in Members' Basic Allowances be capped at 2.7%
- (ii) That the increase in Special Responsibility Allowances (SRAs) be capped at 2.7%, where there is headroom against the Independent Remuneration Panel's recommendations
- (iii) That there should be no Special Responsibility allowance for Vice-Chairmen of Local Committees

Mr Essex said that it was not appropriate to award increases to Members' Allowances that were higher than staff pay awards. He also said that there had not been a proportional approach to the SRA increases and that the number of SRAs was increasing.

Four Members spoke on this amendment, making the following points:

- That Members' Allowances had not been increased for four years and should not be compared with staff pay.
- SRAs were different in Surrey because many of the comparator authorities did not have Local Committees.
- This amendment did not address the excessive number of SRAs.
- The proposals appeared to devalue the scrutiny process.
- It would be difficult to defend the increases to the Surrey electorate.
- As the motion was tabled at the meeting, there was little democratic accountability.

The amendment was put to the vote with 10 Members voting for and 56 Members voting against it. There were 8 abstentions.

Therefore the amendment was lost.

Returning to the original motion, seven Members spoke and made the following points:

- The increased cost of these allowances would be met by the Surrey council taxpayers and residents would remember this when casting their votes at the forthcoming borough / district elections.
- Concern re. the number of multiple SRAs.
- Members must be paid in accordance with their responsibility, otherwise the Council would only attract people with independent means, who could afford to serve on the Council.

• The Leader / Deputy Leader represented the County Council at Central Government level.

After the debate, Mrs Watson requested a recorded vote and 10 Members stood in support of this request.

The following Members voted for:

Mrs Angell, Ms Bowes, Mrs Bramhall, Mr Brett-Warburton, Mr Carasco, Mr Chapman, Mrs Clack, Mr Cosser, Mrs Curran, Mr Ellwood, Mr Few, Mrs Frost, Mr Fuller, Mr Furey, Mr Gardner, Mr Goodman, Mr Gosling, Dr Grant-Duff, Mr Gulati, Mr Hall, Mrs Hammond, Mr Harmer, Miss Heath, Mrs Hicks, Mr Hodge, Mr Hussain, Mr Ivison, Mrs Kemeny, Mr Kemp, Ms Le Gal, Mr Mahne, Mrs Marks, Mr Martin, Mr Norman, Mr Page, Mr Pitt, Mrs Ross-Tomlin, Mrs Saliagopoulos, Mr Skellett, Mr Sydney, Mr Keith Taylor, Ms Thomson, Mr Walsh, Mr Wilson, Mr Witham, Mr Young

And these Members voted against:

Mrs Barton, Mr Beardsmore, Mr Beckett, Mrs Coleman, Mr Cooksey, Mr Essex, Mr Robert Evans, Mr Forster, Mr Goodwin, Mr Harrison, Mr Hickman, Mr Jenkins, Mr Johnson, Mr Kington, Mrs Lallement, Mr Mallett, Mrs Mason, Mrs Moseley, Mrs Searle, Mr Selleck, Mr Townsend, Mrs Watson, Mrs White, Mrs Windsor

And there were 4 abstentions: Mr Barker, Mrs Lewis, Mrs Mountain and Mr Munro.

#### **RESOLVED:**

### (a) That the following allowances be approved:

#### BASIC AND SPECIAL RESPONSIBILITY ALLOWANCES

ANNUAL ALLOWANCES (and number of recipients)	
Basic Allowance (81)	£12,418
Leader of the Council (1)	£43,000
Deputy Leader (1)	£31,250
Cabinet Member (8)	£22,500
Cabinet Associate (4)*	£12,500
Select Committee	£10,000
Chairmen (including	
Health Scrutiny) (5)	
Planning & Regulatory	£12,000

Committee Chairman (1) & Council Overview &	
Scrutiny (1) Audit & Governance Chairman (1)	£9,000
Lead Member for	£8,000
Scrutiny of the Police & Crime Commissioner (1)	
Local Committee Chairmen (11)	£8,000
Pension Fund Board Chairman (1)	£8,000
Pension Fund Board Vice-Chairman (1)	£1,500
Committee Vice- Chairmen (Select Committees (including Council Overview & Scrutiny and Health Scrutiny), Planning and Audit) (8)	£1,500
Local Committee Vice- Chairmen (11)	£1,500
Chairman of Council (1)	£18,000
Vice-Chairman of Council (1)	£8,000
Officers of Political Groups	£170 per Member
Members of the Adoption and Fostering Panels (2)	£1,000
Opposition Group Leader (2)**	£5,000

\* Cabinet Associates received an interim payment of £5,000 in 2013/2014.

\*\*Any Group with a minimum of 10% of the elected members of the Council.

- (b) That, the following arrangements for implementation of the changes to the Basic and Special Responsibility Allowances be approved:
  - (i) the amended scheme takes effect from 1 April 2014.
  - (ii) for the next two financial years, the scheme will be adjusted annually in accordance with the Consumer Price Index.
  - (iii) In recognition of the clear intention that the amended scheme should take effect from 21 May 2013, a one-off payment, equivalent to any increase that the Member would have been eligible for, be made to each Member.
- (c) That other allowances within the Scheme be set as follows:

Travel (cycles/motorcycles/ cars)	20p/24p/45p per mile
,	
Passenger rate	5p per mile
Subsistence	£5.30/£7.25/£2.90/
(breakfast, lunch, tea	£9.00
and evening meal)	
Overnight	£85.80/£97.85
(outside London/	
London)	
Co-optees	None
Childcare	Up to a maximum of
	£8.00 per hour (per
	child)
Care of Dependants	Up to a maximum of
	£14.50 per hour

#### **OTHER ALLOWANCES**

- (d) That the increase to the Childcare Allowance to a maximum of £8.00 per hour be effective from 6 May 2014.
- (e) That the requirement for Members to use registered childminders for the care of their child or children whilst carrying out an approved duty be amended as follows:

'that payments for the care of children under eight are restricted to registered childminders and other statutory approved childcare providers, unless the childcare takes place in the Members' own home.'

(f) That the agreed Scheme of Allowances remain in place until May 2017, subject to review by the Independent Remuneration Panel as necessary to take account of any changes to roles and responsibilities. Page 9 [NOTE: Under the Local Authorities (Members' Allowances)(England) Regulations 2003, the Council is required to have regard to the recommendations of its Independent Remuneration Panel before any changes can be made to the Scheme of Allowances.]

- (g) That the Independent Remuneration Panel be thanked for its hard-work and diligence over the years.
- (h) That, in light of the Scheme of Allowances being set until 2017, the Chief Executive be asked to review the Terms of Reference of the IRP and, upon completion of this work, make appointments to the newly constituted IRP.

### 34/14 ANNUAL REVIEW OF POLITICAL PROPORTIONALITY 2014/15 [Item 10]

**RESOLVED** (with no Member voting against):

That the Committee sizes and scheme of proportionality for 2014/15 as set out in the scheme, attached at Annex 1 of the submitted report, be adopted.

# 35/14 APPOINTMENT OF COMMITTEES [Item 11]

The proposals for the appointment of committees were tabled at the meeting and are attached as Appendix D.

#### **RESOLVED:**

- 1) That the Members, as set out in Appendix D, be appointed to serve on the Committees of the Council for the Council Year 2014/15 in accordance with the wishes of political groups.
- (2) That the Chief Executive be authorised to make changes to the membership of any of the Council's Committees as necessary during the Council Year in accordance with the wishes of political groups.
- (3) That the County Councillors representing divisions in the Woking borough area be appointed to serve on the Woking Joint Committee for the Council Year 2014/15.
- (4) That the remaining County Councillors for each district/borough area be appointed to serve on the appropriate Local Committee for the Council Year 2014/15, and to authorise the Chief Executive to appoint an equal number of district/borough councillors to the Local Committees following nominations by the district and borough councils, which they should be requested to make politically proportional to their Membership.
- (5) That the Council's representative be appointed to the Surrey Police and Crime Panel for the Council Year 2014/15.
- (6) That the Chief Executive be authorised to appoint the co-opted Members of the Surrey Pension Fund Board, following nominations from each stakeholder group, for the rest of the Council term until 2017.

# 36/14 ELECTION OF COMMITTEE CHAIRMEN AND VICE-CHAIRMEN 2014/15 [Item 12]

The proposals for the Committee Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen were tabled at the meeting.

# **RESOLVED:**

- (1) That the Members listed below be elected as Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen of Committees, as shown, for the Council Year 2014/15.
- (2) That the Chief Executive be authorised, in consultation with the Chairman of the Committee, to appoint the Borough's nominated Member as Vice-Chairman of Guildford Local Committee once the co-opted Members are appointed.

SELECT COMMITTEES			
	Chairman	Vice-Chairman	
Council Overview & Scrutiny	Nick Skellett	Eber Kington	
Adult Social Care	Keith Witham	Margaret Hicks	
Children & Education	Zully Grant-Duff	Denis Fuller	
Communities	Denise Saliagopoulos	Chris Norman	
Environment & Transport	David Harmer	Mike Bennison	
Health Scrutiny	Bill Chapman	Ben Carasco	
PLANNING AND REGULATORY COMMITTEE			
	Keith Taylor	Tim Hall	
AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE			
	Nick Harrison	Bill Barker	
PEOPLE, PERFORMANCE & DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE			
	David Hodge	Peter Martin	
SURREY PENSION FUND BOARD			
	Denise LeGal	Nick Skellett	

LOCAL COMMITTEES			
DISTRICT	CHAIRMAN	VICE-CHAIRMAN	
Elmbridge	Margaret Hicks	Mary Lewis	
Epsom & Ewell	Eber Kington	John Beckett	
Guildford	Mark Brett-Warburton	Borough to appoint	
Mole Valley	Tim Hall	Clare Curran	
Reigate & Banstead	Dorothy Ross-Tomlin	Bob Gardner	
Runnymede	Chris Norman	Yvonna Lay	
Spelthorne	Richard Walsh	Denise Saliagopoulos	
Surrey Heath	David Ivison	Chris Pitt	
Tandridge	Michael Sydney	Nick Skellett	
Waverley	Pat Frost	David Harmer	

Woking Joint Committee	Liz Bowes	Borough to appoint

# ADJOURNMENT

The meeting adjourned for lunch at 12.45pm and resumed at 2.15pm with all those present who had been in attendance in the morning session except for Mrs Barton, Mr Bennison, Mr Brett-Warburton, Mr Carasco, Mr Ellwood, Mr Tim Evans, Miss Heath, Mr Hickman, Rachael I Lake, Mrs Mason, Mrs Moseley, Mr Page, Mr Skellett, Mr Sydney and Mr Townsend.

[Note: The Chairman decided that there was a need to suspend the webcast for the debate on the four motions.]

# 37/14 ORIGINAL MOTIONS [Item 13]

# Item 13(i)

Under Standing Order 12.3, the Council agreed to debate this motion.

Under Standing Order 12.1, Mr Robert Evans moved the motion, which was:

'This Council welcomes the initiatives by towns and local authorities across Surrey to encourage the use of fair trade goods by achieving Fairtrade status.

Furthermore this Council believes that Surrey County Council, as an important consumer and opinion leader, should research, develop and support a strategy to facilitate fair trade wherever appropriate.

Council therefore resolves, wherever possible:

- To promote awareness of fair trade issues and the opportunities for supporting fair trade across the County.
- To work with Surrey Fairtrade and those towns who already have Fairtrade Status to widely publicise the worldwide impact of unfair trade and the opportunities that fair trade provides to sustainable development.
- To encourage the use of fair trade goods, for example products carrying the Fairtrade Mark and products in vending machines.
- To request the Council's venues to stock Fairtrade products in addition to other brands.
- To concentrate on making Council employees, the Surrey public and local businesses aware of the Council's resolution on fair trade.'

Mr Robert Evans made the following points:

- Many towns in Surrey already have Fairtrade Status but there was a need to encourage others to take this step.
- A need to work towards everyone achieving a dignified livelihood.
- The Fairtrade Mark could make a real difference for some farmers, in distant parts of the world it can ensure that they receive a fair price for their crops.

The motion was formally seconded by Mr Essex who said that he was pleased that Members would be given a free vote on this motion, it was a non-party political motion. He also said that the Fairtrade mark was mostly about those products that could not be produced in the UK – the motion was not asking for exclusivity, it was seeking to promote fairtrade towns across Surrey.

Other Members spoke, making the following points:

- Statistics indicated that Fairtrade businesses were doing well.
- The importance of choice in shops.
- Fairtrade was an impressive organisation and its initiatives were strongly endorsed.
- Fairtrade needed to be encouraged but its exclusive use was not supported.
- If Fairtrade status enabled some overseas countries to become more stable, that was a good thing.
- The Fairtrade logo raised awareness and encouraged people to think about the origin of the produce / food.

After the debate, in which 8 Members spoke, the motion was put to the vote with 51 Members voting for and 8 Members voting against it. There were 4 abstentions.

## **RESOLVED:**

This Council welcomes the initiatives by towns and local authorities across Surrey to encourage the use of fair trade goods by achieving Fairtrade status.

Furthermore this Council believes that Surrey County Council, as an important consumer and opinion leader, should research, develop and support a strategy to facilitate fair trade wherever appropriate.

Council therefore resolves, wherever possible:

- To promote awareness of fair trade issues and the opportunities for supporting fair trade across the County.
- To work with Surrey Fairtrade and those towns who already have Fairtrade Status to widely publicise the worldwide impact of unfair trade and the opportunities that fair trade provides to sustainable development.
- To encourage the use of fair trade goods, for example products carrying the Fairtrade Mark and products in vending machines.
- To request the Council's venues to stock Fairtrade products in addition to other brands.
- To concentrate on making Council employees, the Surrey public and local businesses aware of the Council's resolution on fair trade.

# Item 13 (ii)

Under Standing Order 12.3, the Council agreed to debate this motion.

Under Standing Order 12.1, Mrs Hazel Watson moved the motion, which was:

'This Council notes the recent publication of the House of Commons Public Administration Select Committee report *More complaints please!* 

In the light of this report, Council agrees to fundamentally change its policy and the implementation of its approach to complaints in order to welcome complaints as a way of engaging with residents to improve services, making the complaints process more user friendly by making it simpler, more accessible and with speedier outcomes.'

Mrs Watson made the following points:

- That the motion was asking for the County Council to make it easier for Surrey residents to complain and that they would receive a speedier outcome to their complaint.
- It was difficult to navigate the Surrey County Council website to find out how to complain.
- She alleged that many complaints re. Adult Social Care were valid.
- There was a low response to feedback.
- Complaints were currently buried in Council bureaucracy.

The motion was formally seconded by Mr Beardsmore.

Seven Members spoke, making the following points:

- That the Communities Select Committee received regular updates in relation to complaints data.
- It was Council policy to listen and that the County Council had a complaints procedure which had been in place for many years.
- The Council had a key strategy to comply with Ombudsman guidance.
- Officers in the Contact Centre actively encouraged people to make complaints if they were dissatisfied either on-line, by phone or in writing.
- Complaints were actively investigated and may be escalated if appropriate.
- The Council was always looking to improve the process and complaints procedures were regularly reviewed.
- In 2013, 91% (excluding Children Services and Adult Social Care complaints, which had separate procedures determined by Government) were responded to in 20 working days.
- The Audit and Government Committee receive reports re. complaints.

After the debate, the motion was put to the vote with 9 Members voting for it. 49 Members voted against it and there were 3 abstentions.

Therefore, the motion was lost.

### Item 13(iii)

Under Standing Order 12.3, the Council decided it wished to hear further before agreeing whether or not to debate this motion.

Mr Forster made a short statement giving reasons why the motion should not be referred. He referred to the invaluable role of young carers and the importance of helping them. He also said that young carers were twice as likely to be NEETS (Not in Education, Employment or Training) and lived in households where no adult was in work. He believed that changing the eligibility to Pupil Premium would give these children the best possible start in life.

The Cabinet Associate for Adult Social Care made a short statement stating that whilst he agreed that the County Council needed to support young carers, he was not convinced that changing the eligibility for Pupil Premium was the best or the only way to help young carers. He considered that the motion should be referred to the Children and Education and Adult Social Care Select Committees so that it could be considered in more detail.

10 Members voted for debating the motion today but 42 Members voted against debating it today.

Therefore, it was:

# **RESOLVED:**

That this motion be referred to the Children and Education and the Adult Social Care Select Committees. Under Standing Order 12.6, the committees must report back to County Council at the earliest appropriate meeting.

## Item 13(iv)

Under Standing Order 12.3, the Council agreed to debate this motion.

Under Standing Order 12.1, Mr George Johnson moved the motion, which was:

'The Council believes that the true cost of Britain's membership of the European Union affects all levels of trade, industry and government.

It is considered by many that up to 75% of UK laws now originate in Brussels although determining the full extent to which EU law has supplanted UK law is complicated by the fact that, in addition to the direct, and therefore immediately visible, implementation of EU regulations, EU directives are transposed into UK Statutory Instruments.

The House of Commons has estimated that, in 2009, 53% of UK law originated from Brussels and the LGA has estimated that around half of all new UK laws affecting local authorities in England have their origins in EU law. Thus it is inevitable that Surrey County Council has and will incur additional costs as a consequence of complying with EU derived laws. For example, whilst the Government predicted that the 2004 EU Public Procurement Directive would not add new costs or administrative burdens to the public sector, an LGA survey in 2010 revealed that 66% of local authority procurement managers felt that the directive had increased procurement costs and created a more complex procedure.

In common with other local councils, Surrey County Council has been and continues to be under severe budgetary restraint, but will still have to deliver new EU obligations across a broad range of functions and could be liable for hefty fines for failure to comply. While we continue to ask our residents to accept annual increases in their council tax whilst being unable to deliver the level of services and highway maintenance that they would like, it is important that they are kept fully informed of those costs that are beyond the control of their elected representatives.

Therefore this Council:

- calls for the publication of the administrative cost to Surrey County Council of complying with EU Regulations
- agrees, in the interests of the transparency to which it is committed, to publish the figures on its website and in its annual Council Tax Demand.
- agrees to publish any cost savings which accrue from complying with EU regulations.'

Mr Johnson made the following points:

- That the County Council was legally bound to obey EU law.
- The public had a right to know the effect of EU legislation.
- Transparency was important, plus the need for Surrey residents to have an understanding of how their money was being spent.

The motion was formally seconded by Mrs Windsor who said that this motion was about trying to dispel the myths surrounding United Kingdom's membership of the EU and promote transparency concerning the cost of complying with EU regulations.

The Deputy Leader made the following points:

- He disputed some of the facts set out in the motion.
- That EU legislation was an integral part of UK laws.
- He highlighted two areas waste and procurement and the EU Directives relating to waste / landfill plus the implications for the UK if we left the EU.
- That the UK should re-negotiate its terms with the EU and then hold a referendum.

Mrs Watson moved an amendment at the meeting, which was formally seconded by Mr Beardsmore.

The motion, as amended, read:

'This Council believes that the true benefit and cost of Britain's membership of the European Union affects all levels of trade, industry and government.

Therefore this Council:

- calls for the publication of the administrative cost to Surrey County Council of complying with EU Regulations.
- agrees, in the interests of the transparency to which it is committed, to publish the figures on its website and in its annual Council Tax Demand.
- agrees to publish any cost savings which accrue from complying with EU regulations.
- calls for a report to the Cabinet highlighting the benefits to Surrey residents and businesses of EU membership including tourism, the financial sector, manufacturing, education, the environment and employment.'

Mrs Watson said:

- Bureaucracy should be reduced at all levels of Government.
- A reference to tourism had been included in the amendment because it formed the background to Surrey's economy.
- Many global businesses, including McLaren, had based themselves in Surrey, thereby creating thousands of jobs.
- Surrey's 'success story' was based on EU Membership.
- The EU could be a major contributor to the flooding recovery plans for the county.

After 2 Members spoke, the amendment was put to the vote with 9 Members voting for and 43 Members voting against it. There was one abstention.

Therefore the amendment was lost.

Returning to the original motion, Mr Hodge moved, under Standing Order 23.1:

'That the question be now put'

20 Members stood in support of this request. The Chairman considered that there had been adequate debate and agreed to the request.

The motion was put to the vote with 3 Members voting for and 46 Members voting against it. There were three abstentions. Page 17 Therefore the motion was lost.

## 38/14 REPORT BACK FROM CABINET ON REFERRED MOTION [Item 15]

The Chairman reported that the motion from the Council meeting on 10 December 2013, standing in the name of Mr Cooksey, and which was referred to Cabinet for consideration was lost, as detailed in the report set out in the agenda.

Mr Cooksey was given the opportunity to address the Council and asked if the process for referral of motions would be reviewed by the Constitution Review Group. The Chairman of the Council said that he would ask the Vice-Chairman of the Council to include its review as part of the Group's work.

# 39/14 REPORT OF THE CABINET [Item 16]

The Leader presented the report of the Cabinet meeting held on 25 March and 22 April 2014.

# (1) Statements / Updates from Cabinet Members

The Cabinet Member for Schools and Learning tabled a statement relating to School Improvement (Appendix E).

# (2) Recommendations on Policy Framework Documents

### A School Organisation Plan

#### **RESOLVED:**

That the School Organisation Plan 2013/14 – 2022/23 be approved.

#### (3) Reports for Information / Discussion

The following reports were received and noted:

- Home to School Transport Policy 2015
- Joint Working through Guildford Local Committee
- Quarterly report on decisions taken under Special Urgency Arrangements: 1 January – 31 March 2014

#### **RESOLVED:**

That the report of the meetings of the Cabinet held on 25 March and 22 April 2014 be adopted.

# 40/14 AMENDMENTS TO THE SCHEME OF DELEGATION [Item 17]

#### **RESOLVED:**

That the amendments to the Scheme of Delegation, agreed by the Leader of the Council, and as set out in the submitted report, be noted.

# 41/14 MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS OF THE CABINET [Item 18]

No notification had been received from Members wishing to raise a question or make a statement on any of the matters in the minutes, by the deadline.

[Meeting ended at:3.45pm]

Chairman

This page is intentionally left blank